
Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda  
June 9, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Roll Call
B. Invocation – Attorney Bo Houff
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Ken Sadler
D. Adoption of Agenda

2. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution 2022-039 – Acceptance and Approval of Monthly Financials for ten months ended

April 30, 2022 (Attachment #1)

B. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes – April 25, 2022 (Attachment #2)

C. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – May 5, 2022 (Attachment #3)

D. Approval of Budget Meeting Minutes – May 5, 2022 (Attachment #4)

E. Approval of Closed Session  Minutes – May 5, 2022
F. Approval of Budget Meeting Minutes – May 9, 2022 (Attachment #5)

G. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – May 12, 2022 (Attachment #6)

H. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – May 12, 2022

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
A. Recognition of Army Air Corp Colonel by Representative Jeff Zenger, NC House District 74
B. Sheriff’s Office Report
C. Reagan 2020-2021 Girl’s Golf Team

4. Public Forum
A. Citizens should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
B. Written comments are also available.

5. Appointment(s) – None

6. Preliminary Site Plan Approval(s) – None

7. Evidentiary Hearing(s) – None

8. Public Hearing(s)
A. 2022-2023 Budget

i. Staff presentation (Attachment #7)

ii. Public hearing
iii. Council discussion
iv. Consideration of Ordinance 2022-001 – 2022-2023 Budget Ordinance (Attachment #8)

B. UDO L-167 Lewisville Rural Overlay
i. Staff presentation

ii. Public hearing
iii. Council discussion
iv. Consideration of Ordinance 2022-029 – UDO L-167 Lewisville Rural Overlay (Attachment #9)

9. Technical Review(s) – None



 

 

10. Annexation Request(s) – None 
 

11. Old Business 
A.  Facility Exempt Users (Attachment #10) 

 
12. New Business  

A. Resolution 2022-040 – Newsletter printing contract with Sir Speedy for $2,000.25 (Attachment #11) 
B. Resolution 2022-041– Conflict of Interest Policy applicable to contracts and sub awards of the 

Town of Lewisville supported by federal financial assistance (Attachment #12) 
C. Resolution 2022-042 – Semi-annual HVAC maintenance contract with Air One Industries, Inc. for 

$10,629 (Attachment #13) 
D. Resolution 2022-043 – Street Sweeping contract change order with McCoy’s Services, Inc. for 

$4,650 (Attachment #14) 
E. Ordinance 2022-026– Authorizing the establishment and maintenance of the Parks and 

Recreation Capital Reserve Fund (Attachment #15) 
F. Ordinance 2022-027 – amending the Great Wagon Road ROW/Construction Capital Reserve 

Fund (Attachment #16) 
G. Ordinance 2022-028 – Amending the Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund 

(Attachment #17) 
H. Ordinance 2022-030 – Amending Chapter 16 related to Mary Alice Warren Community Center 

(Attachment #18) 
I. Ordinance 2022-031 – Collection of 2022 Taxes (Attachment #19) 
J. Ordinance 2022-032 – Collection of 2021 and Prior Years’ Taxes (Attachment #20) 
K. Resolution 2022-044 – Amending Community Policing contract to add an additional deputy for 

$7,150 (Attachment #21) 
 

13. Administrative Reports 
A. Upcoming events at Shallowford Square and Town holidays (Attachment #22) 
B. Manager’s Report 

i. CERT training update 
C. Planning Report 
D. Attorney’s Report 
E. Clerk’s Report 

i. Summer Leadership Session – August 16 
F. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on June 2, 2022 

i. Ordinance 2022-024 – Budget amendment to increase budget for vehicle gasoline, repairs 
and maintenance for $3,000  

ii. Ordinance 2022-025 – Budget amendment to increase budget for repairs and maintenance 
at Jack Warren Park for $5,000  

 
14. For the Good of the Order 

A. Public Comments 
i. Citizens should limit their comments to three (3) minutes. 

ii. Written comment forms are also available.  
B. Council Comments 

 
15. Adjournment 

 



DRAFT

Attachment #1



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Lewisville Town Council 
Special Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2022 – 4:30 PM 

Digitally Originating - Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

Mayor Horn opened the special meeting being streamed electronically at 4:30 PM.  In attendance were 
Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Ken Sadler and Jane Welch.  
Also attending were Town Attorney Bowen Houff and Town Clerk Dora Moore.  Council Members Fred 
Franklin, Melissa Hunt and David Smitherman were absent.  Matt Reece, Piedmont Triad Regional Council 
(PTRC), was also in attendance.  

The purpose of the meeting was to discuss with Mr. Reece the executive search process for a Town 
Manager.  Mr. Reece shared that a manager search will be challenging because there are not as many 
candidates as positions.  The expected salary range will be $120,000 to $160,000.   

The search process is anticipated to take 5-6 months; however, Mr. Reece cautioned that the process 
could take longer.  Mr. Reece shared the process and anticipated timeline through November 2022.  In 
2012, the Town received 75 applications.  Mr. Reece cautioned that the Town will be fortunate to have 
three good applicants for interviewing.  He further noted that applicants could be from Virginia, South 
Carolina or larger North Carolina jurisdictions.  Council anticipates the search to begin July, after the 
budget process. (Mr. Reece’s presentation is included with the minutes.) 

Mayor Horn stated the Town has a great staff and inquired whether an internal interim manager was 
sufficient.  Mr. Reece noted that duration of the search process might be a consideration as well as if the 
additional tasks would be too much on a staff member. Mayor Horn stated the Council wants to do what 
is least disturbing for staff. Council Member Sadler stated that if a staff member can handle the interim 
position for 30-60 days, they may be able to handle for six months.  

Mayor Horn requested Mr. Reece provide a proposal for PTRC to assist with the Town Manager search. 

The meeting adjourned at 5:26 PM without a motion. 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #2



Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

May 5, 2022 – 6:30 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:30 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler, David
Smitherman and Jane Welch.  Also attending were Town Manager Hank Perkins, Town Attorney
Bowen Houff, Town Planner Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director
Ryan Moser, and Town Clerk Dora Moore.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Smitherman moved to approve the agenda to include the
addition of a closed session at the end of the meeting and student leadership under For the Good
of the Order. The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously.

2. Introductions, Recognitions and Presentations for May 5, 2022
A. Marilyn Wells, Waste Management, shared recycling costs have increased significantly the last

several years.  Waste Management has been absorbing these increases but are to a point where
they can no longer. Ms. Wells shared information related to recycling.  Lewisville’s contamination
rate of 8.2% is far less than other jurisdictions.  (Handout is included with the minutes.)

3. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. Resolution 2022-035 – Social Media Policy – The proposed social media policy would be a guide

for elected officials and appointed board and committee members. Council Member Sadler
suggested adding wording that appointed members can be removed if they violate the policy.
Mayor Pro Tem Foster shared that the School of Government offers social media classes. This
will be considered at the May 12, 2022 meeting.

B. Town Manager Transition Plan – Manager Perkins is preparing a list of projects to be handled by
the interim.  Currently, the Planner works alongside the Town Manager on all transportation
projects, the Public Works Director always knows anything related to public works, and the
Facilities Manager oversees Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC).   Appointment of
an interim manager will be on the May 12 agenda.

4. Items Requiring Action at Briefing
A. Ordinance 2022-022 – Budget amendment for Town Manager vacation payout – Council Member

Smitherman moved to approve Ordinance 2022-022 as presented. The motion was seconded by
Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved unanimously. (Ordinance 2022-022 is herein incorporated by reference 

into the minutes.)

B. Ordinance 2022-023– Budget amendment for Town Manager executive search – Council will work
with Piedmont Triad Regional Council (PTRC) for the town manager search.  The search will begin
in earnest in July.  Council can also look for individuals outside of PTRC. Council Member Franklin
moved to approve Ordinance 2022-023 as presented. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Welch and approved unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-023 is herein incorporated by reference into 

the minutes.)

C. Resolution 2022-036 – Contract with Piedmont Triad Regional Council for Town Manger executive
search – Council Member Sadler moved to approve Resolution 2022-036 as presented. The
motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2022-036 is 

herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

D. Resolution 2022-034 – Pecan Manor Lane – Street Acceptance – Council Member Hunt moved to
approve Resolution 2022-034 as presented. The motion was seconded by Council Member

Attachment #3



Franklin and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2022-034 is herein incorporated by reference into the 

minutes.) 

5. Unfinished Business
A. MAWCC non-profits – For the last several months there has been a moratorium on exempt user

requests.  Former Parks and Recreation Board Chair Susan Frey was in attendance and shared the
Board’s proposal for non-profit rentals at MAWCC: 1) one room is free when reserved Monday-
Thursday; 2) an additional room can be reserved at half price; 3) the kitchen is not considered an
additional room; and, 4) Friday, Saturday and Sunday rental fees are at half price.  After some
discussion, Council requested the MAWCC usage fee proposal and mission statement be placed
on the May 12 agenda for consideration. Council also requested the following be evaluated:  1)
application process for exempt status request include percentage of community served; 2) review
non-profit list annually; and, 3) develop criteria for exempt selection. Town Clerk Moore will
attempt to have this information for the June agenda briefing.

B. BAC status report
i. Plan of Work (POW) – Mayor Pro Tem Foster shared a Gantt chart reflecting the boards and

committees (BAC) workgroup’s progress thus far.  Council will be requested to prioritize items
in the Comprehensive Plan to determine the POW for 2022-2023.

6. Administrative Reports
A. Manager

i. PARTF grant – Mrs. Tolbert submitted the PARTF grant last week.
B. Attorney – None
C. Public Works – None
D. Planning – None
E. Finance – None
F. Clerk

i. Budget meeting dates
1. Budget workshops – May 5 (following briefing), 6:30 PM; May 9, 6 PM
2. Budget ordinance final review at briefing – June 2, 6:30 PM
3. Budget public hearing at regular Council meeting – June 9, 7 PM

ii. Volunteer Appreciation Ice Cream Social – May 6, 6-8 PM – Mary Alice Warren Community
Center

iii. Ethics Training – Required
1. May 26 – 10 AM-12 PM – Zoom
2. June 2022 – On Demand

7. Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on May 12, 2022
A. Tentative Agenda

i. Consent Agenda
1. Resolution 2022-033 – Acceptance and Approval of Monthly Financials for nine months

ended March 31, 2022
2. Approval of Council Closed Session Minutes – April 7, 2022
3. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – April 7, 2022
4. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – April 14, 2022
5. Approval of Budget Meeting Minutes – April 18, 2022
6. Resolution 2022-030 – Accepting the resignation of Paul Harp from the Environmental

Conservation and Sustainability Committee



7. Resolution 2022-032 – Accepting the resignation of Scott Sewell from the Public Safety Advisory
Committee

ii. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
1. Presentations

a. Sheriff’s Office
iii. Public Hearings
iv. Technical Review(s)
v. Preliminary Site Plan Approvals

vi. Evidentiary Hearings
vii. Old Business

viii. New Business
1. Resolution 2022-031 – Setting 2022-2023 Budget Public Hearing
2. Resolution 2022-037 – Setting a public hearing to receive comments on UDO L-167

Permitted Use Table Amendment
B. Approval of Tentative Agenda for regular meeting on May 12, 2022

i. Council Member Welch moved to approve the tentative agenda for May 12, 2022. The motion
was seconded by Council Member Smitherman and approved unanimously.

8. For the Good of the Order
A. NCLM Entrepreneurial Award – The Town was awarded the 2022 North Carolina League of

Municipalities (NCLM) Entrepreneurial Award for the obstacles overcame in construction of the
Mary Alice Warren Community Center.

B. Student Leadership – Council Member Hunt suggested that participants of the one-day student
leadership session should be required to attend the August 11 Council meeting or view on
YouTube. Participants could be recognized at the September meeting.

C. First Amendment Auditors – At the NCLM conference, Mayor Horn shared a presentation was
given about First Amendment Auditors and municipal buildings. A draft policy restricting facility
access will be on the May 12 agenda for consideration.

9. Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) – Council Member Smitherman moved to enter
into closed session at 8:16 PM.  The motion as seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved
unanimously.

Council returned to open session at 9:29 PM. 

10. Adjournment – Meeting was adjourned without a motion.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Budget and Action Meeting 

May 5, 2022 – 6:00 PM  
(following agenda briefing) 

Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order - Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 9:29 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn,
Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler,
David Smitherman and Jane Welch.  Also attending were Town Manager Hank Perkins, Town
Planner Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director Ryan Moser, and Town
Clerk Dora Moore.

2. Adjournment – Due to the late hour, Council Member Franklin moved to continue the budget and
action meeting to May 9, 2022 at 6:00 PM.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler.
Council consensus was to advertise a budget and action meeting for May 10, 2022 in case it is
needed after the May 9 meeting.  The motion was approved unanimously at 9:42 PM.

________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

___________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #4



Lewisville Town Council Budget and Action Meeting 

May 9, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

(continued from May 5, 2022) 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 

6510 llowford Road 

1. Call to Order - Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM. In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn,
Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler,
David Smitherman and Jane Welch. Also attending were Town Manager Hank Perkins, Town Planner
Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works Director Ryan Moser, Town Clerk Dora Moore
and Facilities Manager Brian Moore.

2. Budget Review – continued
A. General Fund

i. Expenditures
n. Solid waste

1. Waste Management’s request to increase recycling fees by $91,164 is not reflected.
i. Mayor Horn asked if Council would be willing to consider a one-time cost this year

since unsure if this will be a reoccurring cost.
ii. Manager Perkins suggested that if this is considered to apply it to one contract

year.
o. Recycling – Reviewed
p. Parks and Recreation

1. Mr. Moore will develop a payment deadline recommendation for Council
consideration.

2. Beginning July 2022, Council wants quarterly reports on Mary Alice Warren
Community Center (MAWCC) usage.

3. It was suggested to hold off on removing excess vegetation at Jack Warren Park until
PARTF grant is funded.

4. Additional round tables and chairs are proposed for MAWCC.
5. A kiosk is proposed for MAWCC. The kiosk would have scrolling information on

location of booked events and how to make a reservation.
6. Transfer to Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve of $400,000 is a transfer from ARPA

funds.
a. Dog park and other park-related purchases could potentially come from this fund.

B. Willow Run Municipal Service District
i. Hydrilla is a 50/50 grant with the State.
ii. Tree removal at the lakes was just approved by Council but the work could move into the

2022-2023 fiscal year.  If work is completed this fiscal year, the funds will be placed in
projects.

iii. Contingency represents ½ cent.
C. Capital Reserve Funds

i. The provisions of these funds are detailed in ordinances adopted by Council.
ii. Municipal Buildings and Land fund is lower due to $1.4 million transfer for MAWCC.
iii. A Parks & Recreation capital reserve fund is recommended and would require an ordinance to

establish.
D. Capital Projects Funds

i. GWR
a. Includes wayfinding, pedestrian lighting, stamped concrete and landscaping

Attachment #5



b. Right-of-way purchases in 2022 and construction in 2024

A break was taken from 7:32 PM until 7:45 PM. 

3. Budget discussion
A. EV charging stations

i. Part of carbon footprint for Environmental Conservation and Sustainability Committee 2030
goal.

ii. Electrify America funding is only for EV stations along a highway.
iii. It was recommended that the Food Lion shopping center might be a better location for EV

station due to restaurants and businesses.
iv. For the current grant opportunity, the EV stations have to be on public accessed property

which is why David McKee Street and MAWCC were the proposed options.
v. Consensus was to pull this from the budget.  Staff can apply for two EV stations to be placed

on David McKee Street.  If grant is awarded, a budget amendment can be done.
B. Graco LineLazer Paint Sprayer

i. Revenue source was changed from revenue to fund balance.
C. Town Manager Search

i. Although approved by Council in current fiscal year, funds are needed in the 2022-2023 fiscal
year due to crossover.

D. Street Sweeping
i. One additional residential street sweeping will be added in the Spring.

E. Capital Reserve contributions
i. Municipal Buildings/Land – No contribution this year.
ii. Public Works Facility
iii. GWR ROW/Construction – No contribution this year.
iv. Sidewalks, Bike Paths & Greenways

F. Waste Management recycling increase request
i. A great deal of discussion was held as to whether to fund Waste Management’s entire

request, fund at a reduced rate or not fund at all.
ii. Mayor Horn made a motion to split the difference and fund $45,582 for the recycling increase.

Motion died for lack of a second.
iii. Council consensus was to not fund the requested recycling increase request.

Council Member Smitherman left the meeting at 8:43 PM and returned at 9:00 PM 

G. MAWCC revenues
i. Council consensus was to reflect a total of $60,000.

H. Revenue projections
i. Staff was requested to increase revenues where projections are conservative.

I. Assistant Town Manager
i. Manager Perkins is proposing to make the planner position also the assistant town manager.

This would include 5% pay increase.
J. Planner I position

i. A great deal of discussion was held related to the proposed Planner I position.
K. No tax increase

i. Council consensus was for no tax increase.

Council consensus to cancel the scheduled May 10, 2022 Budget and Action Meeting. 



4. Adjournment – Council Member Sadler moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:05 PM. The motion as
seconded by Council Member Smitherman and approved unanimously.

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 12, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 7:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler, and Jane Welch.  Also
attending were Town Manager Hank Perkins, Town Attorney Bowen Houff, Town Planner Stacy
Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, and Town Clerk Dora Moore.  Council Members Fred Franklin
and David Smitherman were absent.

B. Invocation – Attorney Bowen Houff
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Boy Scout Troops #719 and #752
D. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Welch moved to amend and approve the agenda to

include council presentation under Presentations, proposed budget revisions under Old Business
and interim manager under New Business. The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt
and approved unanimously.

2. Consent Agenda
A. Consent agenda items

a. Resolution 2022-033 – Acceptance and Approval of Monthly Financials for nine months
ended March 31, 2022

b. Approval of Council Closed Session Minutes – April 7, 2022
c. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – April 7, 2022
d. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – April 14, 2022
e. Approval of Budget Meeting Minutes – April 18, 2022
f. Resolution 2022-030 – Accepting the resignation of Paul Harp from the Environmental

Conservation and Sustainability Committee
g. Resolution 2022-032 – Accepting the resignation of Scott Sewell from the Public Safety

Advisory Committee
B. Council Member Hunt moved to approve the consent agenda. The motion was seconded by

Council Member Sadler and approved unanimously.
(Resolutions 2022-030, 2022-032 and 2022-033 are herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

3. Presentations, Introductions and/or Proclamations
A. Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office – Sergeant Stringer shared current call statistics.  With the warmer

weather and people out along the streets, Sgt. Stringer encouraged motorists to use caution
especially in neighborhoods.  National Police Week is May 15-21.

B. Council Presentation – Mayor Horn presented a plaque of appreciation to Manager Perkins.
Council expressed their gratitude and well wishes to Manager Perkins.  Manager Perkins
expressed gratitude for his time at Lewisville.

4. Public Forum – None

5. Appointment(s) – None

6. Public Hearing – None

7. Evidentiary Hearing(s) – None

Attachment #6



May 12, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 

8. Annexation Request(s) – None

9. Technical Review(s) for Compliance – None

10. Old Business
A. Boards and Committees status update

i. Ice cream social was held last week with about half of the committee members and their
families attending.

ii. Mayor Pro Tem Foster requested Council to prioritize the Comprehensive Plan items by this
Sunday evening.  These priorities will then be given to boards and committees for their plan
of work.

iii. Leadership training will be held May 17 at 7 PM.
B. Student Leadership – A one-day session will be held August 16, 8:30 AM-6:00 PM.
C. Proposed budget updates – Mrs. Orrell shared updates to the proposed 2022-2023 Budget.



May 12, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 

11. New Business
a. Resolution 2022-031 – Setting 2022-2023 Budget Public Hearing – Council Member Hunt

moved to approve Resolution 2022-031.The motion was seconded by Council Member Welch
and approved unanimously. (Resolution 2022-031 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

b. Resolution 2022-035 – Social Media Policy – At boards and committees orientation, the policy
will be shared with the members and that if anything they post on social media poses a
potential problem to the Town, the member could be removed.  Member Hunt moved to
approve Resolution 2022-035.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler and
approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2022-035 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

c. Resolution 2022-037 – Setting a public hearing to receive comments on UDO L-167 Permitted
Use Table Amendment – The Planning Board held a public hearing on May 11, 2022 related to
the UDO L-167 permitted use table amendment and they voted unanimously to recommend to
Council.  Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve Resolution 2022-037.  The motion was
seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2022-037 is herein

incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

d. Resolution 2022-038 – Establishing control access to Town facilities – Council Member Welch
moved to approve Resolution 2022-038.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Sadler
and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2022-038 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

e. Ordinance 2022-039 – Amending Chapter 16 related to exempt users – Council held discussion
on who should qualify as a non-profit in Section 16-14.  After much discussion, amendments to
Section 16-14 were tabled.  The Parks and Recreation Board proposed amendments to Section
16-18 related to the Mary Alice Warren Community Center (MAWCC) as follows:

Section 16-18 (new language is italicized) 
F. User fees for exempted users. Nonprofit organizations and government organizations as
listed in § 16-14(J) are exempt from the payment of deposits. Cleaning and damage fees are
not exempt. If the facility is left unclean or damaged, the organization will be assessed a
cost.  Fees to utilize the Mary Alice Warren Community Center by nonprofit and government
organizations on the exempt user list in § 16-14(J) are as follows:
1. One room is free when reserved Monday-Thursday.

a. An additional room can be reserved at half price.
b. The kitchen is not considered an additional room.

2. Friday, Saturday and Sunday rental fees are at half price.

Mayor Horn shared a proposed mission statement for MAWCC to be included in Section 16-18 
also: 

A. Mission statement.  To nurture a sense of community belonging by providing facilities,
programs, educational classes, activities and events primarily designed to enhance the lives
of Lewisville and neighboring area residents and their families.

Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve Ordinance 2022-039 amending Section 16-18 and 
adding the MAWCC mission statement in section 16-18. The motion was seconded by Council 
Member Sadler and approved unanimously.  (Ordinance 2022-039 is herein incorporated by reference 

into the minutes.) 
f. Revised 2022 Meeting Schedule – The 2022 Meeting Schedule needs to be revised to reflect

the Lewisville Beautification Committee with no meetings in June, July or August. Council

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-796#JD_16-14
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-796#JD_16-14


May 12, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Member Welch moved to approve revised 2022 Meeting Schedule.  The motion was seconded 
by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.  (Revised 2022 Meeting schedule is included with 

the minutes.) 

12. Administrative Reports
A. Upcoming Town holidays – Manager Perkins shared upcoming events at Shallowford Square and

noted Town offices will be closed May 30 for Memorial Day.
B. Manager’s Report

i. PARTF grant
a. Mrs. Tolbert submitted the PARTF grant prior to the deadline.

C. Planning Report
D. Clerk’s Report

i. Budget meeting dates
a. Budget ordinance final review at briefing – June 2, 6:30 PM
b. Budget public hearing at regular Council meeting – June 9, 7 PM

ii. Summer Leadership Session – August 16
E. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on May 5, 2022

i. Ordinance 2022-022 – Budget amendment for Town Manager vacation payout
ii. Ordinance 2022-023– Budget amendment for Town Manager executive search

iii. Resolution 2022-036 – Contract with Piedmont Triad Regional Council for Town Manger
executive search

iv. Resolution 2022-034 – Pecan Manor Lane – Street Acceptance

A break was taken at 8:10 PM to celebrate Manager Hank Perkins.  The meeting reconvened at 8:18 PM. 

13. Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) and NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) – Council Member
Sadler moved to enter into closed session at 8:20 PM.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Foster and approved unanimously.

Council returned to open session at 9:40 PM. 

14. Interim Town Manager appointment – Mayor Horn moved to appoint Stacy Tolbert as interim town
manager at a supplemental rate of $2,384/month not subject to COLA or merit and in addition to her
duties as planner.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.
Mrs. Tolbert thanked Council for the opportunity and for placing trust and confidence in her to lead
the Town.

15. For the Good of the Order
A. Council Member Welch inquired about placing hours of operation on the MAWCC doors.
B. Council Member Welch inquired what would happen should individuals ‘camp out’ at MAWCC?

Manager Perkins feels it would be appropriate to address if it were to occur.
C. Council Members Sadler and Welch expressed their thanks to Manager Perkins.



May 12, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 

16. Adjournment – Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:51 PM. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Welch and approved unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Attachment #7













DRAFT

Attachment #8



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2022-029 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
UDO L-167 - AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) 

LEWISVILLE RURAL OVERLAY 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board held a public hearing on May 11, 2022 on the draft to amend the 
UDO section related to the Lewisville Rural Overlay (LRO) and Planned Residential Developments (PRD); 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Planning Board recommended approval to the Lewisville Town Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council held a public hearing on June 9, 2022. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) UDOL-167 related to the Lewisville Rural Overlay (LRO) and Planned Residential 
Developments (PRD) is amended as noted in the attached document.      

Adopted this the 12th day of June 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

__________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk DRAFT

Attachment #9



STAFF REPORT 

DOCKET # UDO L-167 

REQUEST 

This text amendment was drafted by staff to amend the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to officially 

define the area of the Lewisville Rural Overlay (LRO) and to adopt a map showing the boundaries of the 

LRO.  The amendment also intends to further protect the rural areas of Lewisville including scenic vistas, 

heritage corridors and lands along the Yadkin River.  The amendment applied to UDO Chapter B, Article 

II, Section 2-1.2; Chapter B, Article II, Section 2-1.6; Chapter B, Article II, Section 2-5.59; and Chapter B, 

Section 2-4.1 Table B.2.6 Permitted Uses Table. 

BACKGROUND 

In UDO, Chapter B, Article II Zoning Ordinance, there are multiple sections addressing the Lewisville Rural 

Overlay District.  The town has adopted specific standards for properties within the LRO and refers to an 

exhibit in the appendix section of the Ordinance for the map.  Unfortunately, the map is not found in 

the appendix.  In addition, our very desirable rural areas of Town need further protection to remain the 

beautiful areas they are today.  This text amendment is meant to be proactive for the changes coming 

to Lewisville. 

ANALYSIS 

Staff, along with the Planning Board, have continued to study the areas of the UDO that attempt the 

preservation of rural areas.  Along with UDO regulations, the newly adopted 2022 Lewisville Tomorrow 

Comprehensive Plan details the “Rural Residential” area of the Future Land Use Map as areas intended to 

maintain rural character by limiting large-scale subdivisions, enhance the conservation of the natural 

landscape and viability of working lands, and continue to protect the community’s natural resources 

through land use designations and conservation districts. Planned Residential Developments (PRD) are 

meant to preserve open space and cluster development, however, the conditions for the PRD use do not 

protect large rural tracts of land generally located in the Yadkin River Conservation (YR) zoning district, 

the Agricultural (AG) zoning district and the RS-40 & RS-30 zoning districts.  With the update to the 

districts in which PRDs will be allowed along with the adoption of a map of the LRO, we feel this is a 

needed text amendment to the UDO. 

SUMMARY 

This text amendment will clarify the area designated as the Lewisville Rural Overlay, it will no longer allow 

PRDs to be located in the YR, AG, RS-40 & RS-30 zoning districts, and it will not allow for private package 

treatment plants to extend into the LRO.  Staff believes this change to the UDO is reasonable and 

consistent with the 2022 Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan and will make the UDO more easily 

understood and interpreted. 

The Planning Board voted to unanimously recommend the amendment to Council at their May 11, 2022 

meeting. 

The exact language to be added and/or amended to the UDO is attached. 

DRAFT



Chapter B; Article II, Section 2-1.2 
RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS – PURPOSE STATEMENTS AND REGULATIONS 

(A) YR Yadkin River Conservation District.

(3) Supplementary District Requirements.

(b) Development Standards.

(i) Minimum Lot Size.  A minimum lot size of three (3) acres shall be
required., except for sites developed as planned residential
developments.  The overall density of a planned residential development
may exceed one unit per three (3) acres if a density bonus is received as 
set forth in the use conditions for planned residential developments in 
Section B.2-5.59.  However, density for planned residential 
developments shall not exceed two (2) units per acre in developable 
areas not restricted by floodplain or steep hillsides. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Chapter B; Article II, Section 2-1.6  
OVERLAY AND SPECIAL PURPOSE ZONING DISTRICTS – PURPOSE STATEMENTS AND 
REGULATIONS  

(F) Lewisville Rural Overlay District (LRO)

(1) Purpose.  The LRO District is intended:

(a) To preserve and enhance the appearance and special character of those rural areas
located within the Town of Lewisville by encouraging development which
respects the existing natural environment;

(b) To recognize these characteristics as a major part of the Town’s identity and
positive image, and thereby enhance the visual quality of the surrounding areas;

(c) To preserve open sight lines and viewscapes;

(d) To protect working farms, agricultural areas and wildlife habitat;

(e) To recognize the environmentally-sensitive nature of the Yadkin River watershed
and its importance as a water supply source;

(f) To identify and preserve historic sites;

(g) To stabilize and improve property values;

(h) To promote higher density in activity centers;

(i) To discourage strip development;

(j) To locate public buildings in prominent locations;

DRAFT



(k) To encourage more compact growth patterns; 
 
(l) To promote open space in new neighborhoods; 
 
(m) To promote linkage between neighborhoods; 
 
(n) To provide greater access to parks & greenways; 
 
(o) To reduce driveway cuts on major streets; 
 
(p) To cluster development (encourage PRDs) along rural roads. 

 
(2) Boundaries.  All lots designated as “Rural Residential” within current and future town 

limits as shown on the Future Land Use map “LRO Map of Lewisville” found in 
Appendix Exhibit 5 in the adopted 2022 Lewisville Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan shall 
constitute the LRO District. 

 
 
(3) LRO District Requirements. 
 
 (a) Applicability. 

(i) New Development.  The regulations of the LRO District shall apply to 
any change in use of property or change in zoning within the boundaries 
of the LRO District.  The preferred use for residential is existing zoning.  
All residential development that occurs from a change in use or change 
in zoning shall follow the standards as set out in Chapter B Section 2-
5.59 Planned Residential Development. 

 
(ii) Existing Development.  Any development existing at the time the LRO 

District is approved shall not be deemed a nonconformity because of the 
LRO District regulations, and is exempt from the standards set forth 
below. 

 
(iii) Commercial Development.  Any new commercial development within 

the boundaries of the LRO district should follow the requirements as set 
out in Chapter B Section 2-1.5(D). 

 
  (b) Development Review Process. 
 

(i) Development Plan Requirement.  Except for projects as specifically 
exempted herein, no building, grading, or demolition permit shall be 
issued within the LRO District prior to the submittal and 
recommendation of the development plan by the Planning Board and 
approval by the Town Council. 

 
(ii) Compliance Required.  No site plan or subdivision plat shall be approved 

which does not demonstrate compliance with the provisions of this 
section and the conservation standards of the LRO District. 

 

DRAFT



(iii) Appeals.  Any aggravated party may take an appeal from the actions of 
the Town Planner to the Board of Adjustment, whether the site plan was 
approved or disapproved. 

 
(4) Permitted Uses.  All uses permitted in the underlying district shall be allowed in the 

LRO District, with the exception of the following:  Manufactured Homes; Planned 
Residential Developments; Landfill, Construction and Demolition; Landfill, Land 
Clearing/Inert Debris; Landfill, Sanitary; and Borrow Site; Park and Shuttle Lot. 

 
(5) Accessory Structures.  Residential accessory structures that meet the requirement 

Chapter B, Article III, Section 3-1.2 (F):  Accessory Structures Permitted in Required 
Yards, shall be allowed in the LRO District. 

 
(6) Private Utilities.  No existing private package treatment plant shall be extended and no 

excess capacity shall be sold or transferred to properties within the LRO.  No new private 
package treatment plants shall be constructed within the LRO. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Chapter B; Article 2; Section 2-5 Use Conditions 
 
2-5.59 PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
 (D) Permitted Principal Uses  
 

(1) Uses in Applicable Zoning Districts.  Land may be used and buildings erected, altered, 
enlarged, or used to include all uses permitted within the applicable zoning district.  In 
addition, in the RSQ and RS-7 Districts, up to twenty-five percent (25%) of the total 
number of units may be multifamily residential units with approval of a special use 
permit from the Elected Body. 

 
(2) Additional Uses.  Nonresidential uses permitted in the NO and NB Districts shall be 

permitted in a planned residential development containing at least one hundred (100) 
dwelling units and located in a residential district other than the YR or AG Districts. 

 
(H) Development Standards 
 A planned residential development shall meet the following standards: 
 
 (9) Common Open Space. 
 

(a) Area.  Common open space shall not be less than the following percentages of 
the land area of the planned residential development, excluding dedicated public 
rights-of-way or private access easements. 

 
Underlying Zoning District Open Space 
YR 20% 
AG 20% 
RS-40 20% 
RS-30 20% 

 
 

DRAFT



 

Chapter B; Article II; Section 2-4 PERMITTED USES 

2-4.1 TABLE B.2.6 

Table 2.6 displays the principal uses allowed in each zoning district and references use conditions.  Table 2.6 should be read in conjunction with the definitions of 
principal uses and other terms in Section A.  Land, buildings and structures shall only be used in accordance with the districts shown on the Official Zoning Maps 
and subject to all requirements and conditions specified in this Ordinance. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table B.2.6 
 

PERMITTED USES 

Use 
Type 

Y
R 

A
G 

R
S
4
0 

R
S
3
0 

R
S
2
0 

R
S
1
5 

R
S
1
2 

R
S
9 

R
S
7 

R
S
Q 

R
M
5 

R
M
8 

R
M
12 

R
M
18 

R
M
U 

M
H 

N
O 

L
O 

C
P
O 

G
O 

N
B 

P
B 

L
B 

N
S
B 

H
B 

G
B 

C
B 

L
I 

C
P
I 

G
I 

C
I 

I
P 

C C
D
1-
C 

M
U
-
C 

L
D
1
-
C 

L
D
2
-
C 

V
B
D
-C 

CO
ND
S 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Plann
ed 

Resid
ential 
Devel
opme

nt 

E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E                 E   E    59 

DRAFT



DRAFT



§ 16-14   FACILITY USE EXEMPTION POLICY.

A. Purpose.  To establish uniform guidelines for use of town facilities to the benefit of the town, its
residents and the operating staff.

B. Basic policy. The Town of Lewisville desires that community recreational facilities be used for the
benefit of its residents, the enjoyment of family-oriented activities, and the enrichment of the town's
culture.

C. Non Non-discrimination policy. These facilities are available to all persons without discrimination on
the basis of race, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability.

D. User fees.  User fees are established annually at the time the annual budget is adopted by the Town
Council.

E. User fee exemptions.  Organizations may be exempted from the payment of user fees and deposits
as approved by the Town Council. The exemption shall be in the form of a Town Council resolution
ordinance and shall be included in the list of exempted organizations listed elsewhere in this policy.
Organizations not listed in the Exemption Policy must pay all fees.

1. Organizations located in the Town of Lewisville as that are defined by the Internal Revenue
Code as § 501(c)(3) and § 501(c)(8) desiring recurring use may request to be exempted from user fees 
and deposits by submitting a request for exemption to the Town Council through the Town Manager or 
his or her designee. Requests for exemption shall be considered at the next regularly scheduled meeting 
of the Town Council.  

2. Organizations serving the residents of the Town of Lewisville as defined below may request
to be exempted from user fees and deposits by submitting a request for exemption to the Town Council 
through the Town Manager or his or her designee. Requests for exemption shall be considered at the 
next regularly scheduled meeting of the Town Council.  

a. regularly comes together for the purpose of promoting, providing or supporting
services to the Town of Lewisville or its residents; 

b. uses a location within the Town of Lewisville’s for its primary service place;
c. has an office in the Town of Lewisville;
d. has a majority of Town of Lewisville residents in its service population;
e. conducts a majority of its activities in the Town of Lewisville; or
f. focus a significant program in the Town of Lewisville.

23. Organizations grandfathered by the Town Council (Lewisville Garden Clubs and Homeowner
Associations), non-profit organizations located in the Town of Lewisville as  that are defined by the 
Internal Revenue Code as § 501(c)(3) and § 501(c)(8), and government organizations located in the Town 
of Lewisville are exempt from the payment of user fees and deposits at Shallowford Square, G. Galloway 
Reynolds Community Center and Jack Warren Park.  User fees for exempted users at the Mary Alice 
Warren Community Center are outlined in § 16-18(F).  Cleaning and damage fees are not exempt. If the 
facility is left unclean or damaged, the organization will be assessed a cost. 

34. National or regional organizations located in the Town of Lewisville associated with health,
human services or educational issues involving public schools may use a town facility for an event once 

DRAFT

Attachment #10



 

 

yearly for the purpose of fund raising and the event shall be exempt from user fees and deposits. These 
organizations are not exempt from cleaning and damage fees. If the facility is left unclean or damaged, 
the organization will be assessed a cost. 

 
 F.   Contracts.  All users of town facilities are required to execute the town’s standard rental 
application/agreement prior to their use of a facility. The agreement includes an indemnity holding the 
town harmless from any and all liability caused by the user’s negligence during their use of the facility. 
Some groups may be required to provide proof of liability insurance as determined, on a case by case 
basis, by staff. No sub-contracting is allowed. 
   
G.   Reservations.  All users are required to reserve the use of town facilities through the Town Hall 
scheduling office. Reservations are to be approved by the Town Manager or his or her designated 
representative. Reservations are requested no later than 2 weeks in advance of the required usage. 
Exceptions may be granted by the Town Manager or his or her designee. Reservations made by an 
organization must name a responsible party. 

 
 H.   Recurring use. 
        1.   Groups requiring recurring uses may submit a request to the scheduling office 
(Town Hall Office Manager/Events Coordinator) stating the need for a recurring reservation and 3 
choices of meeting days and times. The Town Manager or designee may approve recurring requests 
after considering the impact on the previously approved uses and future potential needs. Recurring uses 
may be approved for up to 1 year and may be renewed annually. 
 
        2.   The regular request and approval cycle is as follows: 
  

Requests submitted/received June or November 

Recurring use schedule approved July or December 

Recurring use schedule effective August 1 through July 31 or January 1 through December 31 

  
       3.   Out of cycle requests may be submitted at any time, however other pre-approved 
uses will not be altered to accommodate the out of cycle requests. 
 
 I.   Cancellations.  Non-use of dates by recurring users are to be reported to the scheduling office as 
early as possible so that the date will be available to other users. 
 
 J.   Terms of use. 
        1.   Exempted users follow the same rules for renters/users for each facility. All 
Shallowford Square, G. Galloway Reynolds Community Center, Jack Warren Park, and Mary Alice Warren 
Community Center rules apply. (See § 16-12, § 16-13, § 16-17, and § 16-18).  
  

     2.   Exempted organizations (for regular meetings and/or activities): 
         a.   Lewisville Civic Club. 
         b.   Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools. 
         c.   Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools Parent Teacher Association. 
         d.   Boy Scouts of America (local units sponsored by local organizations). 
         e.   Girl Scouts of America (local units sponsored by local organizations). 
         f.   Lewisville Garden Clubs. 

DRAFT

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-717#JD_16-12
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-752#JD_16-13
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-4118#JD_16-17
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-5809#JD_16-18


g. Lewisville Historical Society.
h. Lewisville Area Arts Council (LAAC).
i. Lewisville Branch Library (cooperative agreement with the Forsyth

County Library System).
j. Friends of the Lewisville Library.
k. Piedmont Triad Regional Council and PTRC sponsored programs.
l. Northwest Little League.
m. American Legion.
n. 4H Clubs.
o. Lewisville Athletic Association.
p. Homeowner Association (once yearly meetings).
q. Vienna Civic Club.
r. Shepherd's Center.
s. FCSO Explorer Post 975.
t. Rotary Club of Western Forsyth County.
u. Indian Association of the Carolinas.
v. Tealdrops, Inc.
w. Forsyth Home Educators.
x. Shallow Ford Foundation.

3. Exempt users are required to provide a certificate of insurance naming the town as
an additional insured unless the organization falls under the umbrella of a national charitable 
organization recognized by the Internal Revenue Service under §  501(c)(3) or § 501(c)(8) of the Internal 
Revenue Code or are grandfathered from the original list. 

(Am. Res. 2003039, passed 08-14-2003; Am. Res. 2007035, passed 09-13-2007; Am. Res. 2007068, 
passed 11-01-2007; Am. Res. 2008036, passed 10-09-2008; Am. Res. 2010002, passed 01-07-2010; Am. 
Res. 2010048, passed 09-02-2010; Am. Res. 2010052, passed 10-14-2010; Am. Res. 2011063, passed 12-
01-2011; Am. Res. 2013012, passed 03-14-2013; Am. Res. 2014045, passed 09-04-2014; Am. Ord. 
2015011, passed 02-12-2015; Am. Ord. 2015029, passed 03-12-2015; Am. Ord. 2016034, passed 10-13-
2016; Am. Ord. 2019037, passed 07-11-2019; Am. Ord. 2020002, passed 01-09-2020; Am. Ord. 2021037, 
passed 07-08-2021; Am. Ord. 2021051, passed 09-09-2021) DRAFT



DRAFT

Attachment #11



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT

Attachment #12



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT

Attachment #13



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT

Attachment #14



DRAFT



DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2022-026 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF THE 

PARKS AND RECREATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

WHEREAS, in 2022, the Lewisville Town Council adopted the Lewisville Tomorrow Parks, Recreation & 

Cultural Plan which aims to help the Town of Lewisville to better serve its residents through parks, open 

space, and recreation opportunities; and 

WHEREAS, there is an interest by the Town of Lewisville to purchase land for future parks and/or to 

construct additional amenities and facilities for parks and recreation; and 

WHEREAS, the Town must bear the cost of purchasing land and constructing additional amenities and 

facilities for parks and recreation at an estimated cost of $1,500,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

Section 1. The Lewisville Town Council hereby creates a Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of 

purchasing land for parks and/or constructing amenities and facilities for parks and 

recreation. 

Section 2. This fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years (beginning July 1, 

2022 and ending June 30, 2032) or until the capital reserve fund reaches a balance of 

$1,500,000. 

Section 3. The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than 

$400,000 each year from the General Fund to this fund. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date is July 1, 2022. 

Adopted the 9th day of June, 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

____________________________ 

ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT

Attachment #15



ORDINANCE 2022-027 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING THE GREAT WAGON ROAD ROW/CONSTRUCTION 

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Resolution 2005024 creating a capital reserve fund for 

the acquisition of right-of-way for the Great Wagon Road on April 7, 2005 and transferred from the 

General Fund $277,000 with future transfers to be in the amount of $200,000; and, 

WHEREAS, the capital reserve fund was amended on May 5, 2005 to transfer $150,000 each year 

beginning with FY 2005-2006 and transferred $150,000 during FY 2005-2006 and transferred $150,000 

during FY 2006-2007; and, 

WHEREAS, at its budget meeting on May 3, 2007 requested to amend the capital reserve fund transfer 

amount to $100,000 for FY 2007-2008 budget appropriation and each year thereafter; and,  

WHEREAS, the Great Wagon Road Capital Reserve Fund was corrected from a resolution to an ordinance; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the establishing resolution was amended to Ordinance 2010028 on June 10, 2010; and, 

WHEREAS, the following sections are corrected to read: 

Section 2.   The funds will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years, (beginning July 1, 

2004 and ending June 30, 2017) or until a cumulative sum not to exceed one million, three 

hundred and eighty six thousand ($!,386,000) has been received.  

Section 3.  The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of $277,000 in FY 2004-

2005, $150,000 in FY 2005-2006, $150,000 in FY 2006-2007, $100,000 in FY 2007-2008, 

$100,000 in FY 2008-2009, $0 in FY 2009-2010, $0 in FY 2010-2011, $100,000 in FY 2011-

2012, $100,000 in FY 2012-2013 and will appropriate a transfer no less than $100,000 each 

year from the General Fund to this Fund until FY 2016-2017 when the final amount of 

$9,000 will be transferred, except for the transfer for FY 2009-2010 and FY 2010-2011 

being suspended. 

Section 4.  Also this was amended in April 2009 (FY 2008-2009) to transfer $800,000 to the Great 

Wagon Road Capital Project Fund. 

Section 5.  The Town will transfer $50,000 to the Great Wagon Road Capital Projects ROW Fund during 

FY 2011-2012 to complete funding for grant construction design and survey costs and in 

Attachment #16



December 2011 (FY 2011-2012) also transferred $18,000 to the Great Wagon Road Capital 

Project. 

Section 6.  Due to a need to increase funding for the STP-DA Capital Project GWR/ROW/Construction 

Project, the Town will transfer $99,000 from the Great Wagon Road ROW/Construction 

Capital Reserve Fund into the Great Wagon Road ROW/Construction Capital Project. 

WHEREAS, Town Council transferred $100,000 for FY 2012-2013, 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 to the Great 

Wagon Road Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council at its meeting on June 13, 2013, amended the Great Wagon Road ROW 

Capital Reserve Fund to Great Wagon Road ROW/Construction Capital Reserve Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council at its meeting on June 12, 2014, amended the Great Wagon Road 

ROW/Construction Capital Reserve Fund; and,  

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2014, the Lewisville Town Council amended Ordinance 2014063 Section 3 to 

read: The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of $277,000 in FY 2004-2005, 

$150,000 in FY 2005-2006, $150,000 in FY 2006-2007, $100,000 in FY 2007-2008, $100,000 in FY 2008-

2009, $100,000 in FY 2011-2012, $100,000 in FY 2012-2013, $100,000 in FY 2013-2014, $100,000 in FY 

2014-2015 and will appropriate a transfer no less than $100,000 each year from the General Fund to this 

Fund until FY 2017-2018 when the final amount of $9,000 will be transferred, except for the transfer for 

FY 2009-2010 and FY 2010-2011 being suspended; and,  

WHEREAS, at the Town Council briefing meeting on Mya 5, 2016, the Lewisville Town Council requested 

the Capital Reserve Fund be amended as follows: 

Section 2.   The fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years, (beginning July 1, 

2004 and ending June 30, 2017) or until a cumulative sum not to exceed one million, three 

hundred and eighty six thousand ($1,386,000) has been received.  The ordinance is 

amended to remain operational for an additional period of ten (10) years beginning July 1, 

2016 and ending June 30, 2026 or until the fund reaches a balance of one million five 

hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,000). 

Section 3.  The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of $277,000 in FY 2004-

2005, $150,000 in FY 2005-2006, $150,000 in FY 2006-2007, $100,000 in FY 2007-2008, 

$100,000 in FY 2008-2009, $100,000 in FY 2011-2012, $100,000 in FY 2012-2013, $100,000 

in FY 2013-2014, $100,000 in FY 2014-2015 and will appropriate a transfer no less than 

$100,000 each year from the General Fund to this Fund until FY 2017-2018 when the final 

amount of $9,000 will be transferred, except for the transfer for FY 2009-2010 and FY 2010-

2011 being suspended.  The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount 

of $125,000 in FY 2016-2017. 



WHEREAS, at its meeting on August 9, 2018, the Lewisville Town Council amended Section 2 of this 

ordinance, effective with the FY 2018-2019 budget to appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than 

$115,000 each fiscal year from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund to June 30, 2026 or until the 

fund reaches a balance of $1,500,000; and, 

WHEREAS, during discussions for FY 2020-2021 budget, Council determined there would be no transfers 

to this capital reserve fund; and, 

WHEREAS, the GWR ROW/Construction Capital Reserve Fund was amended for FY 2020-2021 to be 

resumed during FY 2021-2022; and,  

WHEREAS, during discussions for the FY 2022-2023 budget, Town Council determined there would be no 

transfers to this capital reserve from the General Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that the GWR 

ROW/Construction Capital Reserve Fund is amended for FY 2022-2023 to suspend funding for FY 2022-

2023 to be resumed during FY 2023-2024. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date is July 1, 2022. 

Adopted the 9th day of June, 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

____________________________ 

ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2022-028 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS AND LAND 

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville established a Municipal Building Capital Reserve Fund by Resolution 

2006035 for the purpose of constructing the municipal building; and, 

WHEREAS, this fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years (beginning July 1, 2006 

and ending June 30, 2016) or until a cumulative sum not to exceed $1,500,000 has been received; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount no less than $150,000 each 

year from the General Fund to this fund; and,  

WHEREAS, a transfer was made from the General Fund in the amount of $150,000 during FY 2006-007 

and $150,000 during FY 2007-2008; and, 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2006035 was corrected and suspended for FY 2008-2009 to Ordinance 20060048 

on June 4, 2009; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council authorized the transfer of $130,000 of the accumulated funds to the Capital 

Projects Municipal Building Fund for FY 2008-2009 by Ordinance 2008021; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council met on June 4, 2009 and determined that this fund may be used for other 

municipal buildings in the future; and, 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2009023 amended the Municipal Building Capital Reserve Fund to Municipal 

Buildings Capital Reserve Fund; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of proposed budget for FY 2009-2010, suspended the annual 

transfer of $150,000 from the General Fund to this fund during FY 2009-2010; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Council met on February 13, 2010 and determined that this fund may be used for land 

in addition to future municipal buildings and transferred $30,253 to Capital Project Municipal 

Buildings/Town Hall during FY 2009-2010; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 1 has been amended to read, “The Lewisville Town Council hereby creates a Capital 

Reserve Fund for the purpose of purchasing land and constructing municipal buildings.”; and,  

DRAFT

Attachment #17



 

 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2010-2011, suspended the annual 

transfer of $150,000 from the General Fund to this fund during FY 2010-2011 and transferred $6,300.29 

to Capital Projects Municipal Building/Town Hall; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Town Council has approved a transfer to the Capital Projects Fund Maintenance Facility Jack 

Warren Park for construction of the facility in the amount of $55,000 for FY 2011-2012; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2011-2012, transferred$100,000 for 

FY 2011-2012 to Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund for FY 2011-

2012; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2012-2013, transferred $100,000 

for FY 2012-2013 to the Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund for FY 

2012-2013; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Town Council, upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2013-2014, transferred $100,000 

for FY 2013-2014 to the Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fund for FY 

2013-2014; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2014, the Lewisville Town Council amended Ordinance 2006048 to read: 

 

Section 3.  The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than $100,000 

from the General Fund to this fund for FY 2014-2015; and,  

 

WHEREAS, Town Council upon review of the proposed budget for FY 2015-2016 transferred $100,000 

from the General Fund to this fund; and, 

 

WHEREAS, at its meeting on Mya 5, 2016, upon review of the this fund, Council directed Ordinance 

2006048 to be amended; and 

 

WHEREAS, at its meeting on May 12, 2016, Town Council amended Sections 2 and 3 as follows: 

 

Section 2.  This fund will remain operational for a period not to exceed ten years (beginning July 1, 

2006 and ending June 30, 2016) or until a cumulative sum not to exceed $1,500,000 has 

been received.  This ordinance is amended to remain operational for an additional period 

of ten (10) years beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2026 or until the fund reaches 

a balance of one million five hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,000). 

Section 3.  The Lewisville Town Council will appropriate or transfer an amount of no less than $100,000 

from the General Fund to this fund for FY 2016-2017; and,  

 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2018, Section 2 of Ordinance 2006048 was amended as follows: 

 

DRAFT



Effective with FY 2017-2018, the ordinance is amended to appropriate or transfer an amount of no less 

than $170,000 each fiscal year from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund to June 30, 2026 or 

until the fund reaches a balance of $1,500,000. 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2020, Section 3 of Ordinance 2006048 was amended as follows: 

Amendment 1.  The Town Council, at its meeting on April 15, 2019, transferred funds in the amount 

of $16,000 to the Community Center Capital Project Fund. 

Amendment 2.  The Town Council, at its meeting on October 10, 2019, transferred funds in the 

amount of $379,000 to the Community Center Capital Projects Fund. 

Amendment 3.  The Town Council, at its meeting on November 7, 2019, transferred funds in the 

amount of $28,200 to the Community Center Capital Projects Fund. 

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2021, Section 3 of Ordinance 2006048 was amended as follows: 

Amendment 1.  The Town Council, at its meeting on August 13, 2020, transferred funds in the amount 

of $997,788 to the Community Center Capital Project Fund.  

Amendment 2.  The Town Council, at its meeting on June 14, 2021, transferred funds in the amount 

of $170,000 from the Municipal Storm Water Capital Reserve Fund to this fund. 

Amendment 3.  During discussion for FY 2021-2022 budget, Council determined there would be no 

transfers to this capital reserve from the General Fund.  The Municipal Buildings and 

Land Capital Reserve Fund was amended for FY 2021-2022 to suspend funding for FY 

2021-2022 to be resumed during FY 2022-2023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that Section 3 of Ordinance 

20060048 is amended as follows: 

Amendment 1.  During discussions for FY 2022-2023 budget, Council determined there would be no 

transfers to this capital reserve from the General Fund.  The Municipal Buildings and 

Land Capital Reserve Fund is amended for FY 2022-2023 to suspend funding for FY 

2022-2023 to be resumed during FY 2023-2024. 

Adopted the 9th day of June, 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

____________________________ 

ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2022-030 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 16 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE FOR 

PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Ordinance 2007006 enacting a code of ordinances which 
revised, amended, restated, codified and compiled existing ordinances on March 8, 2007 with the 
understanding that chapters will need to be updated; and, 

WHEREAS, changes in the status of Town facilities necessitate amendments to the Parks, Recreation and 
Cultural Development policies; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Code Chapter 16 is being updated to address the prohibited use of glitter and confetti 
and moving of patio furniture at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center as indicated in the attached 
redlined version. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that Chapter 16 Article 2-18 of 
the Lewisville Town Code is amended as noted. It is the intent of the Lewisville Town Council that the 
provisions of this ordinance shall be made a part of the Town of Lewisville Town Code; the sections of this 
ordinance may be re-numbered or re-lettered; and, the word ‘ordinance’ may be changed to ‘section’, 
‘article’, ‘chapter’ or other appropriate designation to accomplish such intention as needed. 

Adopted and enacted this the 9th day of June 2022 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk DRAFT

Attachment #18



§ 16-18 MARY ALICE WARREN COMMUNITY CENTER OPERATING POLICIES.

A. Mission statement.  To nurture a sense of community belonging by providing facilities, programs,
educational classes, activities and events primarily designed to enhance the lives of Lewisville and 
neighboring area residents and their families. 

B. General policy statement. The Town of Lewisville desires that community recreational facilities be
used for the benefit of its residents, the enjoyment of family-oriented activities, and the enrichment of 
the town's culture. 

C. Basic policy. Use of the Mary Alice Warren Community Center is a practical and beneficial asset to
the town. In order to establish authorization and fees for use of this public facility, the Town Council 
directs the Town Manager to maintain standard policies and procedures designed to accommodate fair 
consideration of all requests for use of the facility. 

D. Non-discrimination policy. These facilities are available to all persons without discrimination on the
basis of race, national origin, sex, religion, age, or disability. 

E. User fees. Fees for renting the Mary Alice Warren Community Center are set annually in the
budget. Fees are required upon application submission. If the Mary Alice Warren Community Center 
requires janitorial service or repair work attributable to the user's abuse, the cleaning deposit will be 
forfeited. If damage exceeds the deposit, additional costs will be incurred by the renter/user. 

F. User fees for exempted users. Nonprofit organizations and government organizations as listed in
§ 16-14(J) are exempt from the payment of deposits. Cleaning and damage fees are not exempt. If the
facility is left unclean or damaged, the organization will be assessed a cost.   Fees to utilize the Mary
Alice Warren Community Center by nonprofit and government organizations on the exempt user list in
§ 16-14(J) are as follows:

1. One room is free when reserved Monday-Thursday.
a. An additional room can be reserved at half price.
b. The kitchen is not considered an additional room.

2. Friday, Saturday and Sunday rental fees are at half price.

G. Contracts. All users of the Mary Alice Warren Community Center are required to execute the
town's standard application/agreement prior to their use of the Center. The agreement includes an 
indemnity holding the town harmless from any and all liability caused by the user's negligence during 
their use of the facility. Some groups may be required to provide proof of liability insurance as 
determined, on a case by case basis, by the Town Manager or designee. No sub-contracting is allowed. 

H. Priority of use. The Town of Lewisville will have the first opportunity, at the beginning of each
fiscal/calendar year, to reserve the Mary Alice Warren Community Center for its programs. Users can 
reserve the facility, based on availability, on a first come, first served basis. The town reserves the right 
to suspend usage for maintenance. 

I. Reservations. Those desiring use of the Mary Alice Warren Community Center must fill out an
application and submit it, with appropriate fees, to an official at Town Hall. Reservation dates and times 
may be changed by renters/users prior to the event, subject to availability. Refunds will be given 
according to the Cancellation Policy. 

DRAFT

Attachment #18

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-796#JD_16-14
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-796#JD_16-14


1. If reservations are made by an organization, all fees must be paid by the organization and a
responsible party named. Refunds will be refunded to the organization.

2. If reservations are made by an individual, all fees must be paid by that individual and that
individual is the responsible party. Refunds will be refunded to that individual.

3. Reservations must be made 14 days or more prior to the requested date.
4. All fees and refundable deposits associated with the rental of a town facility must be paid in full

within 14 calendar days of receipt of the invoice. No payment plans will be accepted. If payment
is not received after the 14-day period, the Town reserves the right to cancel the reservation
without notice.

J. Recurring use.

1. Authorized program directors requiring recurring use may submit a request to the scheduling
office (Town Hall Office Manager/Events Coordinator) stating the need for a recurring reservation and 3 
choices of meeting days and times. The Town Manager or designee may approve recurring requests 
after considering the impact on the previously approved uses and future potential needs. Recurring uses 
may be approved for up to 1 year and may be renewed annually. The regular request and approval cycle 
is as follows: 

   Requests submitted/received    June or November 

   Recurring use schedule approved    July or December 

   Recurring use schedule effective    August 1 through July 31, 
   or January 11 through December 31 

2. Out of cycle requests may be submitted at any time; however, other pre-approved uses will not
be altered to accommodate the out of cycle requests. 

K. Mary Alice Warren Community Center rules.

1. Mary Alice Warren Community Center patrons will be responsible for properly disposing of their
trash in the outside trash receptacles and replacing liners in the inside trash receptacles. 

2. Mary Alice Warren Community Center patrons will be responsible for properly disposing of their
recyclable material in the bins provided. 

3. Possession of controlled substances is strictly forbidden and consumption of all alcoholic
beverage is strictly prohibited unless any required ABC permit has been obtained and prior authorization 
received from the town. A copy of the ABC permit must be provided to the town at least 30 days prior to 
the date of rental. The requirements of all ABC rules and regulations and state laws regarding possession 
and distribution of alcoholic beverages must be met.  (See the town's Alcohol Beverage Policy.) 

4. a.   Music that disturbs neighboring property owners and/or residents is prohibited.
b. All music must end at 10:00 p.m.

5. No vending is allowed unless authorized by the Town Manager or designee.

DRAFT



6. Fees may not be charged to enter the facility.

7. Solicitation of other patrons (not participating in the user's activities) is prohibited.

8. Users are expected to be aware of and to obey all other appropriate and applicable laws
concerning public conduct and safety during their use of the Mary Alice Warren Community Center. 

9. Offensive behavior or excessive noise that is a nuisance to other users in the facility or
surrounding neighbors is prohibited. 

10. Maximum occupancy for:

a. Shallow Ford Room is on the room seating chart.
b. Lewisville Room is on the room seating chart.
c. Vienna Room is on the room seating chart.
d. Shallow Ford and Lewisville Rooms are on the room seating chart.
e. Shallow Ford, Lewisville and Vienna Rooms are on the room seating chart.
f. Magnolia Activity Room is on the room seating chart.
g. Great Wagon Conference/Meeting Room is on the room seating chart.

11. Tables and/or chairs are not to be removed from the building.

12. Tables should be covered for any usage.

13. Only battery operated candles are allowed.

14. Floor cleaning materials are in the storage room and spills should be cleaned promptly.

15. Trash can liners are also in the storage room. All trash is to be placed in can liners and the liners
removed and placed in the outside receptacles. 

16. a.   Upon entry, building anomalies should be immediately reported to Town Hall. (8:00 a.m. -
5:00 p.m., Monday - Friday, (336) 945-5558, and weekends see numbers listed on rental application. 

b. Provide a photo if possible.

17. Use of latex balloons is prohibited.

18. Please relay Mary Alice Warren Community Center rules to all participants.

19. Do not prop open outside doors. The building is heated and air conditioned. This puts an
unnecessary burden on the heating/cooling system and will cause the system to fail. 

20. Do not apply tape or adhesive to walls or ceiling tiles.

21. Do not drive anything such as nails or screws into walls.

DRAFT



22. Do not interfere/interrupt other users unless you are scheduled for use of that space at that
time. 

23. Entrance key codes are to remain confidential and should not be given to unauthorized users.

24. Guns and other weapons are prohibited.

25. Smoking is prohibited on the Mary Alice Warren Community Center property.

26. Fireworks, pyrotechnics and sparklers are prohibited.

27. Metal detectors and motorized hobby equipment are prohibited.

28. Glass containers are prohibited.

29. Do not move patio furniture into the building.

30. Glitter and confetti are prohibited.

L. Enforcement of violations. Violation of Mary Alice Warren Community Center rules or abuse of
property can result in expulsion with denial of future use and reservation privileges and assessments of 
costs to clean or repair damages. Rules and regulations are subject to the interpretation of and 
enforcement by designated town officials and the Forsyth County Sheriff's Department. Appeals may be 
brought before the Lewisville Parks, Recreation and Cultural Development Board. Appeals will be 
accepted up to 30 days following the event, must be in writing and must be submitted to the Town 
Clerk. 

M. Cancellation policy.

30 days prior to event Full refund (including cleaning deposit) 

15 days to 29 days prior 

   Resident 50% of base rental fee 

   Non-resident Forfeit surcharge 

14 days or less prior Forfeit all fees paid 

N. Commercial use policy. Renters/users to conduct commercial use is prohibited.

O. User/renters of large events are required to provide a certificate of insurance naming the town as
an additional insured unless the organization falls under the umbrella of a national or local charitable 
organization recognized by the Internal Revenue Service under its § 501(c)(3) or § 501(c)(8) Code. 
(Ord. 2021051, passed 09-09-2021; Ord. 2022-039, passed 05-12-2022) 

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2022-031 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
ORDER TO COLLECT 2022 TAXES BY THE FORSYTH COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 

NORTH CAROLINA 
FORSYTH COUNTY 

ORDER OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S.105-321 AND G.S. 153A-156 

FOR THE COLLECTION OF 2022 TAXES 

TO: JOHN T. BURGISS, RES 
TAX COLLECTOR OF FORSYTH COUNTY, CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, 
VILLAGE OF CLEMMONS, VILLAGE OF TOBACCOVILLE, TOWN OF LEWISVILLE, 
TOWN OF RURAL HALL, TOWN OF WALKERTOWN, CITY OF KING,  
TOWN OF KERNERSVILLE, TOWN OF BETHANIA, CITY OF HIGH POINT 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set forth in the 2022 tax records filed in 
the Office of the Forsyth County Tax Collector, and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you in the amounts and from the 
taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  You are further authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the 2022 taxes 
charged and assessed as provided by law for adjustments, changes, and additions to the tax records and tax receipts delivered 
to you which are made in accordance with law.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien on all real property of the 
respective taxpayers in Forsyth County, City of Winston-Salem, Town of Rural Hall, Town of Walkertown, Village of Clemmons, 
Village of Tobaccoville, Town of Bethania, Town of Lewisville, City of King, Town of Kernersville, City of High Point, Beeson’s 
Cross Roads Fire Protection District, Beeson’s Cross Roads Service District, Belews Creek Fire and Rescue Protection District, 
City View Fire Protection District, Clemmons Fire and Rescue Protection District, Forest Hill Fire and Rescue Protection District, 
Griffith Fire Protection District, Gumtree Fire and Rescue Protection District, Horneytown Fire and Rescue Protection District, 
King of Forsyth County Fire and Rescue Protection District, Lewisville Fire and Rescue Protection District, Mineral Springs Fire 
Protection District, Mineral Springs Service District, Mount Tabor Fire and Rescue Protection District, Northeast Fire and 
Rescue Protection District, Old Richmond Fire and Rescue Protection District, Piney Grove Fire Protection District, Suburban 
Fire and Rescue Protection District, Salem Chapel Fire and Rescue Protection District, South Fork Fire Protection District, 
Talley’s Crossing Fire and Rescue Protection District, Triangle Fire Protection District, Union Cross Fire and Rescue Protection 
District, Vienna Fire Protection District, West Bend Service District, Downtown Winston-Salem Business Improvement District, 
Willow Run Municipal Service District, and Countywide Service District, and this order shall be a full and sufficient authority to 
direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell, any real or personal property, and attach wages and/or other funds, of 
such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. 

You are also hereby authorized, empowered and commanded to administer and to collect taxes on gross receipts 
derived from retail short-term leases or rentals of motor vehicles as set forth under G.S. 153A-156.  You are hereby 
authorized to promulgate such rules and procedures necessary to administer these taxes which are not inconsistent or 
contrary to applicable law. 

Within available funds in the budget ordinance and personnel positions established, the Tax Collector may appoint 
employees and authorize them to perform those functions authorized by the Machinery Act of Chapter 105 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes and other applicable laws for current and previous years’ taxes.  County personnel presently in the 
Tax Collector’s office continue to serve in their respective positions at the discretion of the Tax Collector. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of _________________________, 2022. 

ATTEST:    ___________________________________ ______________________
Mike Horn, Mayor, Town of Lewisville  

________________________
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT

Attachment #19



ORDINANCE 2022-032 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
ORDER TO COLLECT 2021 AND PRIOR YEARS’ TAXES BY THE FORSYTH COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 

NORTH CAROLINA 
FORSYTH COUNTY 

ORDER OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S.105-373, G.S.105-321, AND G.S.105-330.3 

FOR THE COLLECTION OF 2021 AND PRIOR YEARS’ TAXES 

TO: JOHN T. BURGISS, RES 
TAX COLLECTOR OF FORSYTH COUNTY, CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, 
VILLAGE OF CLEMMONS, VILLAGE OF TOBACCOVILLE, TOWN OF  
LEWISVILLE, TOWN OF RURAL HALL, TOWN OF WALKERTOWN, CITY OF  
KING, TOWN OF KERNERSVILLE, TOWN OF BETHANIA, CITY OF HIGH POINT 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes remaining unpaid as set forth in the 
2013 through 2021 tax records filed in the Office of the Forsyth County Tax Collector, and in the tax receipts herewith 
delivered to you in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  You are further authorized, 
empowered, and commanded to collect the 2013 through 2021 taxes charged and assessed as provided by law for 
adjustments, changes, and additions to the tax records and tax receipts delivered to you which are made in accordance 
with law.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien on all real property of the respective taxpayers in Forsyth 
County, City of Winston-Salem, Town of Rural Hall, Town of Walkertown, Village of Clemmons, Village of Tobaccoville, 
Town of Bethania, Town of Lewisville, City of King, Town of Kernersville, City of High Point, Beeson’s Cross Roads Fire 
Protection District, Beeson’s Cross Roads Service District, Belews Creek Fire and Rescue Protection District, City View Fire 
Protection District, Clemmons Fire and Rescue Protection District, Forest Hill Fire and Rescue Protection District, Griffith 
Fire Protection District, Gumtree Fire and Rescue Protection District, Horneytown Fire and Rescue Protection District, King 
of Forsyth County Fire and Rescue Protection District, Lewisville Fire and Rescue Protection District, Mineral Springs Fire 
Protection District, Mineral Springs Service District, Mount Tabor Fire and Rescue Protection District, Northeast Fire and 
Rescue Protection District, Old Richmond Fire and Rescue Protection District, Piney Grove Fire Protection District, 
Suburban Fire and Rescue Protection District, Salem Chapel Fire and Rescue Protection District, South Fork Fire Protection 
District, Talley’s Crossing Fire and Rescue Protection District, Triangle Fire Protection District, Union Cross Fire and Rescue 
Protection District, Vienna Fire Protection District and West Bend Service District, Downtown Winston-Salem Business 
Improvement District, Willow Run Municipal Service District, and Countywide Service District, and this order shall be a full 
and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell, any real or personal property, and attach 
wages and/or other funds, of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. 

Within available funds in the budget ordinance and personnel positions established, the Tax Collector may appoint 
employees and authorize them to perform those functions authorized by the Machinery Act of Chapter 105 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes and other applicable laws for current and previous years’ taxes.  County personnel presently in 
the Tax Collector’s office continue to serve in their respective positions in the discretion of the Tax Collector. 

Taxes on registered classified Motor Vehicles for 2018 and prior years are deemed uncollectible; therefore, the 
Forsyth County Commissioners, pursuant to G.S. 105-373(h) do hereby relieve the tax collector of the charge of collecting 
taxes on registered classified motor vehicles listed pursuant to G.S. 105-330.3(a)(1) for 2018 and prior years. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of _________________________, 2022. 

__________________________________________ 
  ATTEST:         Mike Horn, Mayor, Town of Lewisville 
  _______________________________________ 
  Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT

Attachment #20



DRAFT

Attachment #21



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DATE FACILITY ORGANIZATION AND/OR CONTACT NAME AND PHONE NUMBERTIME

06/07/2022
HENRY M (HANK) CHILTON PAVILION AT SHALLOWFORD SQUARE

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

1

06/09/2022 1000 LEWISVILLE ELEM FOSTER 469-28524 5TH GRADE 
GRADUATION - END 
OF YEAR PARTY 

Thursday

06/25/2022 0800 TOWN OF LEWISVILLE HOWARD 945-55584 STREET 
PARTY/FOOD TRUCK 
FESTIVAL BAND OF 
OZ

Saturday

06/26/2022 0800 TOWN OF LEWISVILLE HOWARD 945-55584 CLEAN UP FROM 
STREET PARTY

Sunday

07/02/2022 0800 TOWN OF LEWISVILLE HOWARD 945-55584 CONCERT JULY 4TH 
TRIBUTE

Saturday

07/16/2022 0001 TOWN OF LEWISVILLE HOWARD 945-55584 CONCERTSaturday

08/06/2022 0001 TOWN OF LEWISVILLE HOWARD 945-55584 CONCERTSaturday

08/27/2022 0001 TOWN OF LEWISVILLE HOWARD 945-55584 CONCERTSaturday

4 = HENRY M (HANK) CHILTON PAVILION @ SHALLOWFORD SQUARE

Kids in America-80s Tribute

British Invaders

Bon Jovi Tribute Band

Attachment #22

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight

u210297
Highlight


	06-09-2022 TC Agenda
	01 2022-039 Res - April 30 month end financials
	02 04-25-2022 TC Special Meeting Minutes
	03 05-05-2022 TC Briefing Minutes
	04 05-05-2022 Budget Workshop Minutes
	05 05-09-2022 Budget Workshop Minutes
	06 05-12-2022 TC Meeting Minutes
	07 - 2022-2023 Budget Message & Reconciliation
	Final Budget Message 2022-2023
	Reconciliation-Proposed Budget vs Final Budget

	08 - 2002-001 Ord -  Budget Ordinance 2022-2023
	09 2022-029 Ord - UDO L-167 Lewisville Rural Overlay
	2022-029 -Ord - UDO L167 Lewisville Rural Overlay
	UDO L-167 STAFF REPORT
	UDO L-167
	UDO L-167 Permitted Use Table Amendment
	Future Land Use Map

	10 Facility Exemption Suggestions - June 2022
	11 2022-040 Res - Newsletter printing contract
	12 2022-041 Res - Conflict of Interest -federal financial assistance
	13 2022-042 Res - HVAC Maintenance
	14 2022-043 Res - McCoys - street sweeping cahnge order 1
	15 2022-026 Ordinance to Establish Parks and Recreation Capital Reserve
	16 2022-027 Ord - amending GWR ROW Capital Reserve
	17 2022-028 Ord - amending Municipal Buildings and Land Capital Reserve Fund
	18 2022-030 Ord - Amend Ch 16 - MAWCC - Patio Furn & Glitter
	2022-030 Ord - Amending Town Code Chapter 16-18 MAWCC - Patio Frun & Glitter
	Facility Exemption Suggestions - MAWCC (patio and glitter) - June 2022

	19 2022-031 Ord - Collection of 2022 Taxes
	20 2022-032 Ord - Collection of 2021 & Prior Years Taxes
	21 2022-044 Res - amend Community Policing contract - add deputy
	22 Shallowford Square events



